

Chief Executive: John Mitchell

# Council

Date:Monday, 11 January 2016Time:19:00Venue:Council ChamberAddress:Council Offices, London Road, Saffron Walden, CB11 4ER

Members: All Members of the Council

## Public Speaking

At the start of the meeting there will be an opportunity of up to 15 minutes for members of the public to ask questions and make statements subject to having given two working days' prior notice.

#### AGENDA PART 1

## **Open to Public and Press**

- Apologies for absence and declarations of interest.
   To receive any apologies and declarations of interest
- 2 Report of the Monitoring Officer pursuant to Section 5, Local 3 6 Government and Housing Act 1989

To consider a report by the Monitoring Officer

## MEETINGS AND THE PUBLIC

Members of the public are welcome to attend any of the Council's Cabinet or Committee meetings and listen to the debate. All agendas, reports and minutes can be viewed on the Council's website <u>www.uttlesford.gov.uk</u>. For background papers in relation to this meeting please contact <u>committee@uttlesford.gov.uk</u> or phone 01799 510430/369.

Members of the public and representatives of parish and town councils are permitted to speak or ask questions at any of these meetings. You will need to register with the Democratic Services Officer by midday two working days before the meeting.

The agenda is split into two parts. Most of the business is dealt with in Part I which is open to the public. Part II includes items which may be discussed in the absence of the press or public, as they deal with information which is personal or sensitive for some other reason. You will be asked to leave the meeting before Part II items are discussed.

Agenda and Minutes are available in alternative formats and/or languages. For more information please call 01799 510510.

## Facilities for people with disabilities

The Council Offices has facilities for wheelchair users, including lifts and toilets. The Council Chamber has an induction loop so that those who have hearing difficulties can hear the debate.

If you are deaf or have impaired hearing and would like a signer available at a meeting, please contact <u>committee@uttlesford.gov.uk</u> or phone 01799 510430/433 as soon as possible prior to the meeting.

#### Fire/emergency evacuation procedure

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the building by the nearest designated fire exit. You will be directed to the nearest exit by a designated officer. It is vital you follow their instructions.

For information about this meeting please contact Democratic Services Telephone: 01799 510433, 510369 or 510548 Email: Committee@uttlesford.gov.uk

> General Enquiries Council Offices, London Road, Saffron Walden, CB11 4ER Telephone: 01799 510510 Fax: 01799 510550 Email: <u>uconnect@uttlesford.gov.uk</u> Website: <u>www.uttlesford.gov.uk</u>

Committee:	FULL COUNCIL	Agenda Item
Date:	11 January 2016	2
Title:	REPORT OF THE MONITORING OFFICER PURSUANT TO SECTION 5, LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND HOUSING ACT 1989	—
Author:	Michael Perry, Assistant Chief Executive Legal, 01799 510416	Item for decision

#### Summary

 Under s.5(2) Local Government & Housing Act 1989 as the council's Monitoring Officer I have a statutory duty to prepare a report for consideration by the council if I am aware of any contravention of any enactment by the council or by any person employed by the council. As required by s.5(3) before preparing this report I have consulted with the council's Head of Paid Service and the S.151 Officer. This report is to inform members of breaches of the Data Protection Act 1998.

## Recommendations

2. That members note this report.

## **Financial Implications**

3. The information Commissioner has power to impose a financial penalty not exceeding £500,000 if he considers that the contravention is serious, is of a kind likely to cause substantial damage or substantial distress and either the contravention was deliberate or the council knew or ought to have known that there was a risk that the contravention would occur and that the contravention would be likely to cause substantial damage or substantial distress but failed to take reasonable steps to prevent the contravention.

## **Background Papers**

4. None.

## Impact

5.

Communication/Consultation	None
Community Safety	None
Equalities	None
Health and Safety	None

Human Rights/Legal Implications	As set out in the body of this report.		
Sustainability	None		
Ward-specific impacts	None		
Workforce/Workplace	None		

## Situation

- 6. On 24 July 2015 the council received a request for information under the Environmental Information Regulations. This request asked for all data in any format relevant to Countryside Properties work in Takeley to include all notes, minutes, correspondence and other communications external and internal.
- 7. The information was collected and the reply sent on or about 24 August 2015. The material involved was voluminous extending to approximately 2000 pages of double sided paper. In collating the material to respond to the request, a great deal of personal data relating to individuals was redacted. Unfortunately, the person dealing with the collation of the documents omitted to redact the name and email address of one individual, the name and telephone number of two others and the names and postal addresses of two further individuals. Those details were therefore passed to the person making the information request.
- 8. The dissemination of this information clearly breached the Data Protection principles contained in the Data Protection Act 1998. Having had this failing drawn to my attention I have written to the four individuals concerned to inform them of the council's breach of the Data Protection Act, to apologise for the error on the council's behalf and to inform them of their right to complain to the Information Commissioner should they wish to do so. I have also written to the Information Commissioner informing him of the breach.
- 9. There is no evidence to suggest that the person making the information request has used this information for any improper purpose although she has herself made a complaint to the Information Commissioner concerning the council's breach of the Data Protection Act notwithstanding the fact that she is not the victim of that breach.
- 10. This failing has exposed the council to a risk of a financial penalty. However, clearly the contravention was not deliberate. It is fairly obvious that when dealing with requests for information which require the production of voluminous documents that errors may occur and therefore the council knew or ought to have known that there was a risk of a contravention. It is unlikely that the contravention would cause substantial damage but doubtless the individuals concern would be distressed that their personal details have been made available. However, the member of staff was given full instruction on how to approach the task and the work was subject to a spot check which were reasonable steps to prevent the contravention occurring.

# **Risk Analysis**

11.

Risk	Likelihood	Impact	Mitigating actions
A complaint is made to the Information Commissioner	4, a complaint has already been made	3, assuming the complaint is upheld the council will suffer reputational damage	The council has put in place a requirement that all information request responses are double checked to prevent repetition of this error.
A financial penalty is imposed by the Information Commissioner	2, it is unlikely that the Commissioner would conclude that either the contravention was deliberate or that the council had failed to take reasonable steps to prevent the contravention.	3, if a financial penalty is imposed it is not possible to gauge at what level this would be pitched.	The council cooperates fully with the Information Commissioner in any investigation undertaken.

1 = Little or no risk or impact
2 = Some risk or impact – action may be necessary.
3 = Significant risk or impact – action required
4 = Near certainty of risk occurring, catastrophic effect or failure of project.